SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
July 24, 2008
9:08 a. m

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stedman called the Senate Finance Comm ttee neeting
to order at 9:08:17 AM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice-Chair
Senator Kim Elton

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Joe Thomas

Senat or Fred Dyson

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co-Chair
ALSO PRESENT

Randal | Ruaro, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Governor;
Karen Rehfeld, Director, Ofice of Managenent and Budget;
Stacy Kraly, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Departnent of Law,
Jerry Burnett, Di rector, Division  of Adm ni strative
Services, Departnent of Revenue

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

None
SUMVARY

SB 4002 "An Act establishing the Al aska resource rebate
program and relating to the program and providing
for an effective date."

SB 4002 was heard and HELD in Commttee for
further consideration.

SB 4003 "An Act maki ng suppl enental appropriations to the
Al aska Ener gy Aut hority for power cost
equal i zati on; maki ng special appropriations to the
Departnment of Revenue and to the Departnent of
Heal th and Soci al Services for the Al aska resource
rebate program naking a special appropriation to
the Departnment of Revenue for the paynent of
certain shared taxes relating to aviation fuel;
and providing for an effective date.”

Senat e Finance Committee 1 07/ 24/ 08 9:08 A M



SB 4003 was heard and HELD in Commttee for
further consideration.

SENATE BILL NO. 4002

"An Act establishing the Al aska resource rebate program
and relating to the program and providing for an
effective date.”

9: 09: 06 AM

Co- Chair Stedman commented on the problem of the high cost
of energy in Alaska. SB 4002 and SB 4003 address this issue
in the formof a rebate.

RANDALL RUARQO, SPECI AL ASSI STANT, OFFICE OF THE GOVERNCOR,
related that SB 4002 is an inportant bill for Al askans
because it would allow the state to share part of its wealth
on a one-tine basis, with a $1,200 paynent to Al askan
residents. There are three main advantages to the bill
All Alaskan residents would share equally regardless of
where they live. He referred to Article 8 which states that
Al askans own the state’s resources.

M. Ruaro said that the second advantage of the bill is that
the rebate could be paid quickly. The third inportant point
is that the bill includes paynents to veterans and holds
them harm ess fromfinancial offsets.

9:13:10 AM

M. Ruaro noted a disadvantage of the bill in that the

paynents are taxable income; however, they would not reduce
benefits from federal prograns.

Senator Huggins asked for a definition of resident. M.
Ruaro related that the residency definition for the
permanent fund dividend is being used. Also used is a

definition for those who have recently noved to Al aska and
can prove residency.

Senator Huggins asked if any non-residents would be
i ncl uded. M. Ruaro said the second group is not eligible
for a PFD and have not applied for a PFD, but have lived in
Al aska for a six-nonth period and intend to remain.

9:16:38 AM

Senator O son inquired what options those who qualify for
public assistance have. M. Ruaro replied that those
individuals could elect not to receive the rebate for
vari ous reasons.

Senat e Finance Committee 2 07/24/08 9:08 A M



Co-Chair Stedman asked about the title *“Al askan Resource
Rebat e” . He also wanted to know if the program was for
energy relief or if it was a way to pay excess revenue to
citizens. M. Ruaro replied that at the end of the fisca
year there was an excess of $740 nmillion and spending
priorities had been nmet in FY 08. The basis of the bill is
to share the wealth in the form of a rebate. There are no
restrictions as to how the rebate can be spent. It is
expected that many will use the funds to pay for energy-
rel ated costs.

9:20: 32 AM

Co-Chair Stedman recalled years of building up the capita
budget, catching up on deferred maintenance expenses, and
then years to increase savings. He requested information as
to why the direction has changed.

Co-Chair Stedman noted the passage of a bill directing the
state toward a long-termfiscal plan. He wondered how this
bill fits into that plan.

9:22: 01 AM

KAREN REHFELD, DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDCET,
said the administration is commtted to producing a |ong-
range fiscal plan enacted in HB 125. She spoke of
Department of Revenue goals and the plan to put excess
dollars into savings, but also to allow for future capita
expenses. She said she could not detail a picture of that
today. She described the phil osophy behind the bill, which
is to help Al askans neet high energy costs now, while
working on a long-term solution to reduce statew de energy
costs.

Co- Chair Stedman thought that dispersing excess savings was
different than trying to help with heating hones.

Senator Thomas wondered how the rebate changed from an
energy rebate to a resource rebate. He wondered why only
the permanent fund |ist was used. He questioned why soneone
who has only lived in Al aska six nonths should qualify for
t he rebate.

9:26: 05 AM

M. Ruaro addressed the question regarding the renam ng of
the rebate. He recalled that the basis of the bill to share
the wealth with Alaskans has always been present. In an
earlier effort, the focus was directed toward energy-only
expenses. A debit card approach would have worked for 90
percent of Al askans, but sone communities would not be able
to use debit cards, especially in rural Al aska. The idea of

Senat e Finance Committee 3 07/24/08 9:08 A M



paynment to utilities brought up tax issues. The underlying
principle to “share the wealth” has renmai ned.

M. Ruaro spoke to the approach to use only the PFD |ist.
He said he is not opposed to that nethod. Creating the
second group of eligible persons was designed to accommodat e
veterans and others whose benefits would be offset by a
rebat e.

9:29: 46 AM

Senator Thomas did not disagree with that idea. He said
that now, however, people no longer see it as an energy
relief payment. There are questions of fairness now that it
is not considered energy relief. He gave, as an exanple, a
famly of eight receiving eight rebates, which have nothing
to do wth the anmount of energy consuned. There are many
concerns about fairness.

9:32:11 AM

Senator Huggins agreed with the concerns brought up by
Senat or Thonas. He recommended in the future that nore
attention be paid to defining the rebate before the nedia
rel ease is offered. The nessages were confusing. He
inquired who in the adm nistration was working on the bill.

M. Ruaro listed those working on the bill: hinmself, M
Burnett, Ms. Rehfeld, representatives from Health and Human
Services, and enpl oyees of the Division of Finance. Senator
Huggi ns asked if there are any “energy people” working on
it. M. Ruaro said that Steve Haagenson, Executive
Director, Alaska Energy Authority, is working on the bill.
Senat or Huggi ns suggested including | egislative personnel in
the m x.

9:34: 44 AM

Senator Elton referred to page 3, line 1, of the bill where
it talks about if a person is eligible if they were
voluntarily and physically present in the state when they
applied for the rebate. He wondered if that excluded
mlitary personnel, which he did not classify as being
present voluntarily. M. Ruaro said the intent was to all ow
mlitary who qualify for the PFD to be eligible, as well as
t hose overseas. He noted a pending anendnent that clears up
the anmbiguity.

Senator Elton referenced page 5, line 14, of the bill. He
asked if the bill establishes a nandate directly to |oca
control; to political subdivisions as well as to native
organi zati ons. He wondered why that was necessary.

Senat e Finance Committee 4 07/24/08 9:08 A M



STACY KRALY, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF LAW
related that the purpose of the part of the bill Senator
Elton was referring to was to address potential hold
harm ess issues. The hold harm ess provisions included in
the bill address public assistance and veteran benefits.
The intent was to avoid new prograns that woul d be devel oped
in order to qualify for this rebate.

Senator Elton believed that those decisions are best nmade by
muni ci palities. M. Kraly responded that the intent was to
ensure that nunicipalities did not create new needs-based
progr ans. Senator Elton said the premse of the bill is
that it is not an on-going program and the paynent woul d go
out in Septenber, therefore that kind of |anguage is
unnecessary. M. Kraly said it was a stop gap neasure.

9:40: 39 AM
Senator Elton assunmed that the bill was put together with a
consideration for risk assessnent. One potential risk is

uni nt ended consequences. He voiced concern of consequences
in Washington, DC, where it could be said that Al aska is
getting rich off of its resources. There could be
ram fications. He gave an exanple. He questioned if there
was a possibility for a backl ash.

M. Ruaro said that Senator Ted Stevens thought that nenbers
of Congress would see it as a positive that the state is
assisting its citizens in a tinme of energy crisis. It is
possible that it could be seen the other way.

Senator O son asked if Senator Stevens is in favor of this
proposal. M. Ruaro said Senator Stevens supported it at a
press conference in July.

9:44: 58 AM

JERRY BURNETT, DI RECTOR, Dl VI SI ON OF ADM NI STRATI VE
SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, indicated that Senator
St evens was in favor of the rebate.

Co-Chair Stedman spoke of the legislature’s protection of
t he permanent fund. He wondered if the philosophy had
changed. M. Ruaro didn’t think there was a shift. He
believed that this was a one-tinme event.

9:46: 33 AM

Senator Huggins reported that there are 620,000 pernmanent
fund recipients. He wondered if this rebate could be
i ncluded in the permanent fund paynent.

Senat e Finance Committee 5 07/24/08 9:08 A M



M. Burnett said it is a matter of timng. It could be
included in the PFD anount; however, the intent is to do an
earlier distribution in August or Septenber.

Senat or Huggi ns asked how nuch it would cost. M. Burnett
said the cost to send out the check woul d be about $500, 000.
Senat or Huggi ns questioned if normal postage is the correct
way to do it. M. Burnett clarified that expenses include
conputer services, check stock, envelopes, and so forth.
Costs have been fully all ocat ed.

9:49: 20 AM

Co-Chair Stedman called it a resource rebate, not an energy
rebate. He asked why the rebate should be shared with those
who noved to the state seven nonths ago. M. Ruaro said the
intent was to find a nechanismto allow long-tinme Al askans
who do not apply for the PFD to qualify for the rebate.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if the residency requirenent is siXx
nmonths or a year. M. Ruaro said six nmonths - wth an
intent to remain in Al aska.

9:51: 53 AM

Senator Thomas asked if there was a |egal reason to change
from an energy rebate to the current resource rebate. He

suggested tax issues mght have been the reason. He
inquired about the considerations used for qualification.
He questioned the |anguage on page 2, line 25, *“is not
i neligible”.

M. Ruaro said difficulties were found wth tax issues
regardi ng paynents to utilities and co-ops, which are exenpt
under federal law if 85 percent of their incone derives
sol ely from nenbershi p paynents.

AT- EASE: 9:54:24 AM

RECONVENE: 9:59:52 AM

M. Ruaro continued to respond to questions by Senator
Thomas. He explained that outside inconme could count
agai nst the tax exenpt status of co-ops. He explained that
residency eligibility of 6 nonths was selected in order to
stay within the | egal boundaries of a residency period.

M. Burnett addressed the question regarding page 2, line
25. He explained that the |anguage provides that
incarcerated felons and nultiple msdeneanants are not
eligible for a PFD.

10: 02: 06 AM

Senat e Finance Committee 6 07/ 24/ 08 9:08 A M



Senator Thonmas asked if reducing costs to cooperatives and
electrical suppliers was reviewed as a supplenment, as
opposed to providing support to an across-the-board
situation.

M. Ruaro could not recall |ooking at the specific nmechani sm
outlined by Senator Thonas.

10: 03: 39 AM

Senator Elton referred to page 5, line 14. He concl uded

that the rebate would apply only to past actions by a
muni ci pality, not what it mght do in the future, as far as
i npl enenting soci al service prograns.

Ms. Kraly explained that, in terns of the public assistance
benefit arena, what is considered resource or incone for
purposes of eligibility is wde-ranging. The intent is to
l[imt the ability to use this as income for purposes of
eligibility. It limts the ability of prograns to cal cul ate
benefits as incone which would render individuals ineligible
for certain prograns.

10: 05: 41 AM

Senator Elton questioned why sonething that has been al ready
done woul d be voi ded.

Ms. Kraly clarified that the intent was to guarantee hold
harm ess provi si ons. Senator Elton felt the provision
needed further review

Senator Elton observed that statute currently prevents the
use of the CGovernor’s picture on permanent fund dividend
checks. He questioned if the admnistration would be
supportive of prohibiting a picture of the Governor on the
energy check. M. Ruaro could not respond.

10: 08: 26 AM

Senator Huggins asked what I|egal challenges the program
m ght present in the future. Ms. Kraly could not address
the | egal risks.

Senat or Huggi ns inquired about the size of the pool of those
that do not apply for a PFD, but would be eligible.

M. Ruaro reported that there are approximtely 400
veterans, and spouses and children of veterans that receive
VA benefits.

Senat or Huggi ns asked how the PFD and the rebate would be
handl ed differently as they apply to veterans.

Senat e Finance Committee 7 07/ 24/ 08 9:08 A M



M. Ruaro explained that federal statutes and rules affect
veterans’ benefits. In the PFD, there is no hold harm ess
provi sion for veterans. The rebate bill does extend hold
harm ess provisions to veterans. The reduction would occur
by federal law, but the state would step in and pay the
difference, so that they would receive the entire benefit.

10: 12: 27 AM

Senator O son asked if the benefit would be subject to
garnishing. M. Burnett noted that it would not be subject
to garni shnent.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if thought had been given to the
resulting workload due to appeals. He observed the anount
of inquires received by legislators for simlar issues.

M. Burnett acknow edged the concern and that there woul d be
addi ti onal appeals. He did not know how the cost of the
appeal s woul d be absorbed.

10:15: 19 AM

Co-Chair Stedman observed that changes in oil taxation
resulted in raising the marginal tax rate of oil conpanies.
He asked how he could reconcile the additional tax burden to
i ndustry. He suggested using the revenue to help the state
build roads, airports, hospitals, and support education and
transportation through the state appropriation process, Vs.
increasing a tax burden on the industry and then
di stributing a check to each resident.

Ms. Rehfeld acknow edged that a bal ance needs to be reached
between infrastructure, industry, and savings. Bot h
opportunities exist and the philosophy is not dissimlar.

10: 18: 02 AM

Senator Thomas brought up the concept of changing from
energy relief to a fair distribution rebate. He voiced
concern about page 3, line 5: “intends to maintain a honme in
the state.” He maintained that the rebate does not
encour age energy conservation.

M. Ruaro observed that the basis of the paynent is to share
state resources. The difference is that it was determ ned
to be difficult to restrict the support to energy expenses.
There are taxation issues. He pointed out that the funds
could be used to purchase nore efficient fuel systens, as
wel |l as paying electric bills. He acknow edged that page 3,
line 5 could be rewrked to stress that residency nust be
mai nt ai ned, not just a hone.

Senat e Finance Committee 8 07/24/08 9:08 A M



Senator Thomas added that there are already prograns that
pay directly for heat, particularly in rural areas. He
suggested that the rebate could have been incorporated into
an existing program

10: 23: 21 AM

Senat or Huggi ns observed that on page 3, l|lines 27-28, the
| anguage “non-residents of the *“country” mght not be
accur at e.

M. Burnett clarified that under the dividend program and
this program individuals that are not citizens of the
United States, but are residents of the state, would receive
t he benefit.

Senat or Huggi ns questioned the popularity of the program and
asked how $1, 200 was sel ect ed.

10: 25: 19 AM

Co-Chair Stedman noted that during the regular session,
previous bills dealing with an energy rebate were not acted
upon. He wondered if that was a factor when designing this
bill.

Ms. Rehfeld explained that discussions began with a $100 per
nonth debit card, which then transferred to $1,200 a nonth.
She did not think the previous bills were admnistration
bills.

SB 4002 was heard and HELD in Committee for further
consi der ati on.

10: 27: 06 AM

SENATE BILL NO._ 4003

"An Act nmaking supplenental appropriations to the
Al aska Energy Authority for power cost equalization

maki ng special appropriations to the Departnment of
Revenue and to the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services for the Al aska resource rebate program making
a special appropriation to the Departnent of Revenue
for the paynent of certain shared taxes relating to
aviation fuel; and providing for an effective date."

Ms. Rehfeld noted that SB 4003 was the appropriation
legislation for SB 4002. The Il egislation appropriates
nearly $820 million, $800 mllion of which is for the one-
time paynent to eligible individuals for the resource rebate
pr ogr am It does include the associated adm nistrative
costs. There is also $10.7 million included in the hold
harm ess provi sions.

Senat e Finance Committee 9 07/24/08 9:08 A M



Ms. Rehfeld noted there is also a request for $9.6 mllion
for the Power Cost Equalization (PCE) program O that
amount, $600,000 is to fully fund the FY 08 appropriation
and cost for PCE so there would be no proration required
The Al aska Energy Authority has estimated a potential $9
mllion shortfall in the PCE program for FY 09 based on
estimates of increased fuel costs.

Ms. Rehfeld concluded that an additional $150,000 would be
requested to hold harmless nmunicipalities that have
muni ci pal owned airports.

10: 29: 51 AM

Senator Elton asked for clarification about the interplay
bet ween SB 4002 and SB 4003. In SB 4002, Section 1 provides
that “subject to appropriation and availability of funds for
the program individuals eligible for the program may
receive a paynent in the anount of $1,200”. In SB 4003, on
page 2, line 22, it says, “the sum necessary, estimated to
be at $800 million”. He inquired which bill was primary.

M. Burnett said that the $1,200 would go to everyone.
Shoul d the | egislature chose a different amount, it would be
pro-rated. As the bills are currently witten, it would
allow for $1,200 to each person

10: 32: 29 AM

Senator Elton thought that in January a supplenental may be
required. M. Burnett said the bill, as currently witten,
woul d al Il ow for spending beyond $800 mlli on.

Senat or Huggi ns posited a scenario whereby fuel costs renmain
the same and next July the expectation by Alaskans is that
t hey receive another rebate.

Ms. Rehfeld did not disagree wth the scenario, but
enphasi zed that the bill is a one-tine paynent.

Senat or Huggi ns asked how the administration will keep this
to one year. M. Rehfeld hoped that the current |egislation
woul d provide sone relief, but she could not say what m ght
happen in the future. Senat or Huggi ns suggested that an
expectation is being created.

10: 36: 08 AM

Senator O son asked about page 3 regarding nunicipality
airports. He wondered who would be the beneficiaries of the
subsection. M. Burnett reported that taxes are not shared
wi th anyone besides nmunicipal airports in this program The
| argest amount to a nunicipality is to Juneau. Senat or

Senat e Finance Committee 10 07/ 24/ 08 9:08 A M



O son wondered if the bias is towards nmunicipal or rura
airports. M. Burnett replied that Fairbanks and Anchorage
have state-owned airports. This program is designed for
sharing with nunicipal airports around the state.

Co-Chair Stedman wondered if it was a resource rebate or an
energy rebate. He questioned if there should be a trigger
amount before the state steps in to help. M. Rehfeld had
not heard of information regarding that.

Co- Chair Stedman wondered about the ram fications when this
rebate is discontinued. M. Rehfeld understood the concern.
She reiterated that the rebate is intended to be a one-tine
paynent .

10: 39: 52 AM

Senator Elton referenced the section on aviation tax and
requested nore information about how nuch revenue would be
lost. He did not see a problemw th the benefits froma tax
suspensi on. He wondered how much of a benefit the
commercial industry would be getting.

M. Burnett said there is no way to know who is purchasing
t he fuel

Senator Thomas believed that the price of oil was not going
to go down. He thought the prograns should be in place for
3 — 5 years.

SB 4003 was heard and HELD in Committee for further
consi der ati on.

10: 45: 22 AM

Co-Chair Stedman spoke of discussions on longer-term
solutions to the energy problens in Al aska.

ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10:45 AM

Senat e Finance Committee 11 07/ 24/ 08 9:08 A M



